IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CARLOS A. HUERTA, an individual; CARLOS A. HUERTA as Trustee of THE ALEXANDER CHRISTOPHER TRUST, a Trust established in Nevada as assignee of interests of GO GLOBAL, INC., a Nevada corporation;

Case No.: 67595

Electronically Filed Nov 23 2015 09:56 a.m. Tracie K. Lindeman District Court Case No.: Claskos Supreme Court

Dept. No.: XXVII

Appellants,

v.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

22

SIG ROGICH aka SIGMUND ROGICH as Trustee of The Rogich Family Irrevocable Trust; ELDORADO HILLS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company; DOES I-X; and/or ROE CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive,

Respondents.

08/27/13	SCA	Completed additional review and summary of complaint and purchase agreement.	1.00	215.00	215.00
00/04/10	004	O C	1 25	215.00	268.75

08/27/13 SCA Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding drafting answer and

215.00

1.25

268.75

Sig Rogich/Rogich Communications					November 17, 2014 Invoice 432248	
Data	A + 4	Description	Hours	Rate	Page : Amoun	
Date	Atty	Description motion to dismiss. Discussed general strategy as well.	110,1110	211117	•	
08/29/13	KYM	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1.00	160.00	160.0	
08/30/13		Discussed motion to dismiss issue with Samuel S. Lionel.	0.25	215.00	53,7	
00/30/13	00/1	Reviewed secretary of state documents regarding TELD involvement.				
09/04/13	SCA	Reviewed summons and emails from client service. Telephone conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding Rogich service and extension.	0.25	215.00	53.7	
09/05/13	SCA	Drafted preface for motion to dismiss and tweaked caption. Added notice of hearing and legal standard for motion to dismiss. Researched Nevada case law on unjust enrichment and "implied agreement."	1.25	215,00	268.7	
09/06/13	SCA	Reviewed and analyzed Nevada case law on unjust enrichment and "implied agreement." Briefly discussed with Samuel S. Lionel. Retrieved and reviewed additional case law regarding unjust enrichment.	1.50	215,00	322.5	
09/09/13	SCA	Reviewed additional Eldorado transactions such as 2008 and 2012 transfer agreements, for additional factual background.	1.25	215.00	268.7	
09/09/13	SCA	Reviewed complaint again and correlated with Purchase Agreement exhibit.	0.75	215.00	161.2	
09/09/13	SCA	Drafted introduction to motion to dismiss. Outlined argument section.	1.00	215.00	215.0	
09/09/13	SCA	Various discussions with Samuel S. Lionel regarding working out coherency in Complaint.	0.50	215,00	107.5	
09/09/13	SCA	Began drafting factual statement.	1.50	215.00	322.5	
09/09/13	SCA	Drafted unjust enrichment legal standard. Completed case law analysis / application section.	1.00	215.00	215,0	
09/09/13	SSL	Conference with Steven Anderson regarding preparation of motion to dismiss.	0.40	650.00	260.0	
09/10/13	SCA	Revised factual allegations. Continued attempts to reconcile conflicts in complaint and Purchase Agreement. Drafted argument regarding Huerta's unjust enrichment claim.	1,75	215.00	376.2	
09/10/13	SCA	Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding complaint and motion to dismiss strategies / arguments.	1.00	215.00	215.0	
09/10/13	SCA	Revised Huerta unjust enrichment argument. Implemented additional allegations from Purchase Agreement. Began Nanyah and Ray argument section.	1.50	215.00	322.5	
)9/10/13	SCA	Continued work on Nanyah/Ray unjust enrichment argument. Revised to include direct investment v. potential investment options.	1.50	215.00	322.5	
09/10/13	SCA	Telephone conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding refined unjust enrichment argument.	0.25	215.00	53.7	
09/10/13	SSL	Conference with Steve Anderson regarding preparation of motion to dismiss 3 causes of action.	1.00	650.00	650.0	

Sig Rogich/Rogich Communications			November 17, 2014 Invoice 432248 Page 4		
Date	Atty	Description	Hours	Rate	Amount
09/11/13	•	Researched NRS 11 regarding limitations. Located Nevada case law regarding same. Drafted legal standard and argument regarding statue of limitations.	2.00	215.00	430.00
09/11/13	SCA	Implemented Samuel S. Lionel argument regarding Rogich's inability to eliminate membership interest. Completed draft. Revised and submitted to Samuel S. Lionel.	1.75	215.00	376.25
09/11/13	SCA	Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding revisions. Implemented	0.25	215.00	53.75
09/11/13	SCA	Research case law and secondary sources regarding inability to transfer what is not yours.	0.75	215.00	161.25
09/11/13	SSL	Review draft of motion to dismiss Ray Nanyah claims against Eldorado; conference with Steve Anderson regarding claims.	1.25	650.00	812.50
09/12/13	SCA	Made final revisions to Eldorado motion to dismiss. Filed and served. Revised file-stamped copy and hearing date.	1.25	215.00	268.75
09/16/13	SCA	Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding motion to dismiss calendaring and issues implicating Rogich. Discussed Nanyah and Ray's potential benefit from Antonio case. Discussed Rogich motion to dismiss.	0.25	215.00	53.75
09/25/13	SSL	Review facts in preparation for future Huerta deposition (.50); review letter from McDonald requesting stipulation permitting filing of amended complaint(.25).	0.75	650,00	487.50
09/27/13	SCA	Emailed and left message with opposing counsel regarding amended complaint. Discussed same with Samuel S. Lionel.	0.25	215,00	53.75
10/02/13	SCA	Telephone conference with opposing counsel regarding amended complaint. Rogich service and continuing hearing date.	0.25	215.00	53.75
10/03/13	SCA	Discussed various issues with Samuel S. Lionel. Reviewed opposing counsel email and attachment. Reviewed calendaring issues regarding same.	0.50	215.00	107.50
10/03/13	SSL	Conference with Steve Anderson regarding his conference with McDonald and McDonald's letter and proposed stipulation with respect to motion to dismiss and filing an amended complaint.	0.50	650,00	325.00
10/07/13	SCA	Exchanged emails with opposing counsel regarding amended complaint. Reviewed proposed stip and signed. Exchanged additional emails regarding same.	0.25	215.00	53,75
10/10/13	SSL	Reviewed issues regarding Canamax; telephone conference with Melissa Olivas and Mr. Rogich; review file regarding proposed transaction.	0.50	650.00	325.00
10/21/13	SCA	Reviewed proposed amended complaint. Drafted email to Samuel S. Lionel regarding remaining deficiencies and use in Antonio Nevada case.	0,25	215.00	53.75
10/22/13	SCA	Briefly compared complaint to amended complaint. Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding responses and potential counter/crossclaim.	0.75	215.00	161.25
10/22/13	SSL	Study Huerta's 1st Amended Complaint; conference with Steve	1.50	650,00	975.00

Sig Rog	Sig Rogich/Rogich Communications			November 17, 2014 Invoice 432248 Page 5	
Date	Atty	Description	Hours	Rate	Amount
		Anderson regarding complaint.			50.00
10/25/13	SCA	Reviewed email regarding Rogich responsive pleading and amended complaint. Responded. Exchanged additional emails regarding discovery.	0.25	215.00	53.75
10/28/13	SCA	Exchange various emails with opposing counsel regarding Huerta hearing; amended complaint, and response deadlines.	0.25	215,00	53.75
10/29/13	SSL	Preparation of answer to First Amended Complaint.	4.50	650.00	2,925.00
10/30/13	SSL	Preparation of answer to Amended Complaint.	3.00	650,00	1,950.00
10/30/13	SCA	Telephone conferences with chambers regarding vacating motion; revised notice to vacate; continued review of file stamped complaint relating to answer/counterclaim.	0.75	215.00	161,25
10/31/13	SSL	Preparation of answer to First Amended Complaint; review authorities with respect to covenant of good faith and fair dealing; check Alexander Christopher Trust.	2.00	650.00	1,300,00
10/31/13	SCA	Telephone conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding counter vs. cross claim; reviewed third party practice rules regarding Huerta	0.50	215.00	107.50
11/01/13	SSL	Melissa Olivas emails regarding answer to 1st amended complaint; review and respond to her email (.5); legal research regarding revoked Nanyah charter (1.50);	2.00	650,00	1,300.00
1/04/13	SCA	Reviewed and commented on Answer to First Amended Complaint. Exchanged emails regarding same.	0.50	215,00	107.50
1/04/13	SSL	Review proposed answer and study Huerta evidence; proparation for subsequent Huerta deposition.	4,00	650.00	2,600.0
11/05/13	SCA	Discussed with Samuel S. Lionel adding counterclaim regarding indemnification. Reviewed proposed language. Proposed and discussed	0.50	215.00	107.50
1/05/13	SSL	Preparation of counterclaim.	1.00	650.00	650.00
12/02/13	SCA	Telephone conference with opposing counsel regarding early case conference. Confirmed with Samuel S. Lionel. Reviewed Rule 16 dates and calculated late reply to counterclaim.	0.75	215.00	161,25
12/04/13	SSL	Prepare for 16.1 case conference; prepare information regarding persons having knowledge; marshall documents.	3,00	650.00	1,950.00
2/05/13	SSL	Conference with Steve Anderson regarding issues with respect to equity claim (1.00); prepare for 16.1 case conference.(1.50)	2.50	650,00	1,625.0
2/06/13	SCA	Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding failure to reply to counterclaim and early case conference issues.	0.25	215.00	53.75
2/10/13	SCA	Sent email confirmation regarding early case conference. Drafted 16.1 disclosures and began organizing initial production.	1.00	215.00	215.00
2/11/13	SSL	Conference with Steve Anderson regarding 16.1 case conference and document issues.	0.50	650.00	325.00
12/11/13	SCA	Supplemented draft 16.1 disclosure. Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding case conference, scheduling and strategy.	1.00	215.00	215.00

Sig Rog	ich/Ro	gich Communications			er 17, 2014 ce 432248 Page 6
Date	Atty	Description	Hours	Rate	Amount
12/11/13	7	Traveled to and from and attended case conference. Confirmed filing deadline expiration regarding pleadings and disclosures.	1.75	215.00	376.25
12/19/13	SCA	Finalized Initial 16.1 disclosures and prepared for service.	0.75	215.00	161.25
12/30/13	SCA	Telephone conference with opposing counsel regarding his initial production and the draft JCCR.	0,25	215.00	53.75
12/31/13	SCA	Sent another follow-up email regarding JCCR and discovery production.	0.25	215.00	53,75
01/02/14	SCA	Reviewed docket for reply to counter. Exchanged emails regarding initial production and JCCR.	0.25	235,00	58.75
01/06/14	SSL	Received and reviewed plaintiff's NRC 16.1 disclosures of witnesses and documents.	0.50	650.00	325.00
01/06/14	SCA	Reviewed and commented on the JCCR. Confirmed dates. Emailed revisions to opposing counsel. Confirmed no filing of reply to counter. Confirmed with Denise.	0.75	235,00	176.25
01/07/14	SCA	Followed up with opposing counsel regarding JCCR. Discussed failed to file reply with Samuel S. Lionel.	0.25	235.00	58.75
01/24/14	SCA	Reviewed annexed arbitration rules and short trial rules for wiggle room on \$50K monetary limit. Discussed with Samuel S. Lionel. Exchanged emails/left message with opposing counsel regarding exemption.	0.75	235.00	176.25
01/24/14	SSL	Review arbitration issues and conference with Steven C. Anderson regarding issues.	0.50	650.00	325.00
01/28/14	SSL	Review plaintiff request for exemption from arbitration; conference with Steve Anderson regarding Lewis testimony; review Lewis deposition.	2.00	650.00	1,300.00
02/06/14	SSL	Review Purchase Agreement of Teld, Flangas and Rogich trusts.	1.00	650,00	650.00
02/07/14	SSL	Prepare Request for Production of Financial documents; review file; prepare for Nanyah Vegas deposition; prepare for Huerta deposition.	4.50	650.00	2,925.00
02/10/14	SCA	Reviewed JCCR. Discussed discovery deadlines and discovery already served. Confirmed status of arbitration.	0.25	235.00	58.75
02/10/14	SSL	Prepare for Huerta Deposition	3.00	650.00	1,950.00
2/11/14		Prepare for Huerta Deposition	4.00	650.00	2,600.00
)2/12/14	SCA	Confirmed missing reply to counter. Reviewed Samuel S. Lionel discovery requests.	0,25	235.00	58.75
)2/18/14	SCA	Telephone conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding discovery issues. Confirmed again that no arbitration exemption nor reply to counter had been filed. Retrieved word document from second request for production.	0.25	235.00	58.75
)2/18/14	SSL	Prepare for Nanyah Vegas - Huerta deposition	4.00	650.00	2,600.00
)2/19/14	SCA	Telephone conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding discovery and service of reply to counter.	0.25	235,00	58.75
)2/19/14	SSL	Review Nevada Bad Faith Fair Dealing cases; prepare for Huerta	4.00	650.00	2,600.00

Sig Rogich/Rogich Communications		November 17, Invoice 43: Pa			
Date	Atty	Description	Hours	Rate	Amount
		deposition			
02/20/14	SCA	Discussed discovery requests with Samuel S. Lionel. Finalized second request for production and prepared for service.	0.50	235.00	117.50
03/04/14		Review bad faith cases.	0.50	650.00	325.00
09/05/1 4		sames same de la politica de la comencia del comencia de la comencia del comencia de la comencia del la comencia de la comencia del la comencia de la comen	emindelolis	a×650100#E	<i>⇔2</i> ;600 :00
03/07/14	SCA	Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding Huerta's depo in Eldorado case and how to use it in the present matter.	0.25	235.00	58.75
03/12/14	SCA	Reviewed Huerta's response to first and second request for productions. Compared with initial production. Conference with Samuel S. Llonel regarding same.	0,50	235.00	117.50
03/13/14	SCA	Emailed opposing counsel regarding deficiencies in production. Discussed same with Samuel S. Lionel.	0,25	235.00	58.75
03/13/14	SSL	Review Huerta responses to Request for Production; conference with Steven C. Anderson regarding defective responses.	0.50	650.00	325.00
03/19/14	SSL	Review NRS 86.401 regarding change in interest of member of LLC by judgment creditor; telephone conference with M. Olivas regarding hearing; review M. Olivas Huerta history.	1.00	650.00	650.00
03/20/14	SCA	Emailed opposing counsel to follow-up on deficient discovery issue.	0,25	235.00	58,75
03/24/14	SSL	Review operating agreement. (.50); review M. Olivas memorandum regarding Carlos Chronicles (.50); conference with Steven C. Anderson regarding attorney fee issues including equities issue (.50); review transcript of hearing on Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings (.25); prepare for Nanyah Vegas PMK deposition (1.00).	2,75	650.00	1,787.50
03/24/14	SCA	Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding need for certain documents to be supplemented. Drafted 2.34 letter and emailed to opposing counsel. Forwarded emails and responses to Samuel S. Lionel.	0.50	235.00	117.50
03/25/14	SSL	File study; review Canamex materials; review email to Brandon McDonald regarding Nanyah Vegas deposition and order dismissing Antonio Nevada Amended Complaint.	1,75	650.00	1,137.50
03/25/14	SCA	Reviewed and responded to opposing counsel's email regarding discovery. Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding various arguments to raised and question on at depo. Raised bankruptcy res judicata points.	1.00	235.00	235,00
03/26/14	SSL	Legal research regarding assignment of negligent representation claim; conference with Steven C. Anderson with respect to legal research showing assignment improper and failure of Huerta to provide copy of Alexander Christopher Trust agreement (alleged assignment from Go Global); review First Supplement to Disclosure and Amended and Restated Operating Agreement and First Amended Complaint.	3.00	650.00	1,950.00
03/26/14	SCA	Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding upcoming depo and	0.50	235.00	117,50

Sig Rogich/Rogich Communications				November 17, 2014 Invoice 432248 Page 8		
Date	Atty	Description	Hours	Rate	Amount	
	•	our supplemental discovery. Reviewed documents to be produced. Sent additional email to opposing counsel confirming need for all of the trust agreement.				
03/27/14	SSL	Review Lionel/McDonald email regarding Order Dismissing Amended Complaint; prepare for Nanyah deposition.	1.00	650.00	650.00	
03/27/14	SCA	Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding Global's assignment and implications. Retrieved motion to dismiss regarding ULLICO for reference in Supreme Court Brigade opinion.	0.50	235,00	117.50	
03/28/14	SSL	Prepare for Nanyah Vegas deposition; legal research regarding bankruptcy law with respect to Huerta filing suit with assignment following confirmation of his and Go Global's bankruptcy plan.	3,00	650.00	1,950,00	
03/28/14	SCA	Reviewed res judicata bankruptcy issue. Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding same. Continued review of bankruptcy filings and disclosures. Review bankruptcy plan and references to Rogich "account receivable." Telephone conference with Rodney M. Jean regarding account receivable treatment in bankruptcy proceedings.	3.25	235.00	763.75	
03/31/14	SCA	Finalized bankruptcy filing summary. Conference with Samuel S. Lionel regarding same. Left message and emailed opposing counsel regarding discovery and deposition. Reviewed discovery responses and referenced implications with timeline.	1.25	235,00	293.75	
03/31/14	SSL	Conference with Steven C. Anderson regarding applicability of bankruptcy law with respect to filing unscheduled litigation following confirmations; review decisions.	1.50	650.00	975.00	
03/31/14	SSL	Prepare for Nanyah Vegas LLC PMK deposition.	1,75	650.00	1,137.50	
04/01/14	SCA	Exchanged emails with Samuel S. Lionel and opposing counsel. Reviewed docket for deadlines and other potential scheduling. Reviewed bankruptcy code for potential disclosure protections.	0.75	235.00	176.25	
04/02/14	SCA	Exchanged emails with opposing counsel regarding discovery and deposition issues. Reviewed documents we recently produced for litigation implications.	0,50	235.00	117.50	
04/02/14	SSL	Prepare for Nanyah Vegas deposition.	5.00	650.00	3,250.00	
04/03/14	SSL	Taking of Nanyah Vegas PMK deposition of Carlos Huerta.	2.25	650,00	1,462.50	
04/03/14	SCA	Made preparation before depo and attended Nanyah 30(b)(6) depo. Debriefed with Samuel S. Lionel.	2,00	235.00	470.00	
04/09/14	SSL	Preparation for Huerta deposition	2.00	650.00	1,300.00	
04/10/14	SSL	Prepare for Huerta deposition; read Huerta/Nanyah Vegas PMK deposition	3.00	650,00	1,950.00	
04/11/14	SSL	Review Amended Complaint; prepare Answer with new defenses of res judicata, collateral estoppel and equitable estoppel; review new bankruptcy issues and non-assignment of claims in Amended Complaint; review revocation of Go Global state charter.	4,00	650.00	2,600.00	
04/14/14	SCA	Continued to follow-up with opposing counsel regarding depo and document production.	0,25	235.00	58.75

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