1	IN THE SUPREME CO	OURT OF THE	
2	STATE OF NE	CVADA	
3	CARLOS A. HUERTA as Trustee of THE ALEXANDER CHRISTOPHER	Case No.: 675 Electronically Filed Jan 22 2016 09:03 a. District Court Gracie K. Lindeman	.m.
5	as assignee of interests of GO	Clerk of Supreme Co	urt
6	Appellants,		
7 8	V.		
9	SIG ROGICH aka SIGMUND ROGICH as Trustee of THE ROGICH FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST;		
10 11	FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST; ELDORADO HILLS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company; DOES 1-X; and/or ROE CORPORATIONS I-X,		
12	inclusive,		
13	Respondents.		
14	APPEAL		
	From the Eighth Judicia	ii District Court	
15 16	The Honorable Nancy L. A	allf, District Judge	
17	RESPONDENT'S ANSV	WERING BRIEF	
18

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

ISSUE PRESENTED

Appellants Carlos A. Huerta ("Huerta") and the Alexander Christopher Trust ("AC Trust") sued Defendant Sig Rogich, Trustee of the Rogich Family Irrevocable Trust ("Rogich"), for breach of express contract, breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing and negligent misrepresentation. Summary Judgment was granted to Rogich on the ground of judicial estoppel. Attorney fees were awarded to Rogich.

Huerta and the AC Trust appealed the awards of summary judgment and attorney fees. The summary judgment appeal was dismissed as untimely. The attorney fee award appeal was not untimely and this appeal concerns that award. 15-19597

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The district court awarded Rogich Summary Judgment on the ground that Appellants were judicially estopped from suing Rogich because Huerta had falsely, under oath, failed to disclose to his bankruptcy creditors his

²⁴ 25

Nanyah Vegas, LLC was also a Plaintiff with a claim for unjust enrichment against Defendant Eldorado Hills, LLC. Summary Judgment was granted to Eldorado. Nanyah Vegas appealed. The appeal has been submitted without oral argument. 15.28641.

alleged claim against Rogich. The claim was based on an agreement, the Purchase Agreement, whereby Huerta and Go Global, Inc., his wholly owned corporation, sold its membership interest in Eldorado, Inc. to Rogich.

Paragraph 7(d) of the Purchase Agreement provided for prevailing party attorney fees if an action was instituted to enforce or interpret the terms of the Purchase Agreement.

Despite the express language of paragraph 7(d) providing for its applicability if the action is "instituted", appellants totally ignore such contractual provision and, argue that the "fee shifting provision provides that fees may be awarded if the contract is interpreted or enforced" Op. Br. at 13:20-21. Because Appellants instituted this action to enforce and interpret the Purchase Agreement and the court ruled in favor of Rogich, Rogich was the prevailing party and the award of fees to Rogich was proper.

FACTS

1. On October 30, 2008 Huerta and his wholly owned corporation, Go Global, sold to the Rogich Trust, its membership interest in Eldorado Hills, LLC ("Eldorado") for the sum of \$2,747,729.50, payable out of profit distributions, if any, as, when and if distributed to Rogich by Eldorado. The Agreement memorializing the transaction is the Purchase Agreement. App. at

0012-21.

2. On July 30, 2013, Go Global assigned to the AC Trust "all

rights, title and interest" it held in the Purchase Agreement. The Assignment provides that the AC Trust "shall be entitled to all money, assets or compensation remaining to be paid pursuant to the Purchase Agreement or from any act of recovery seeking to enforce the obligations of the parties therein." ("Assignment"). *Id.* at 190. The Assignment also provides that "at Assignee's discretion it may initiate recovery, prosecution for claims arising from the Purchase Agreement against The Rogich Family Irrevocable Trust, or other parties as necessary, as if in the stead of Go Global, Inc." It also provided that all recoveries would belong to the AC Trust. *Id.*

- 3. On November 5, 2014, The Court awarded the Rogich Trust partial summary judgment against Huerta and the AC Trust on the ground that Huerta failed to disclose the claim against Rogich to his bankruptcy creditors and had falsely declared that his disclosures were true and accurate. *Id.* at 140-143.
- 4. On February 6, 2015, an Order was entered granting Motion for Award of Attorneys' Fees which awarded Rogich \$237,954.50 against Huerta and the AC Trust. App. 229-231. The Order set forth findings

5. On February 23, 2015, a Final Judgment was duly entered dismissing the Amended Complaint of Huerta and the AC Trust with prejudice, and awarding Rogich \$237,954.50 for attorneys' fees and costs taxed in the amount of \$5,016.77. *Id.* at 236.

- 6. The District Court made the following findings:
- 1. The Court has disposed of all of Plaintiffs' causes of action in a five page written Order that incorporated Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.
- 2. This Action was actively litigated and involved sophisticated issues of law. It required a high level of skill to defend, the issues raised by the parties were complex. The attorney who primarily represented the Defendant Rogich Trust, by reason of his experience, professional standing, skill and advocacy, successfully represented his clients and as a result all of Plaintiffs' substantial claims were dismissed.
- 3. The hourly rates charged were appropriate given the experience and skill necessary to defend the action and the time spent in the defense was reasonable.

3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	

- 4. Paragraph 7(d) of the Purchase Agreement is clear and unambiguous and Defendant was the prevailing party and entitled to its attorneys' fees as provided therein.
- 5. Defendant is awarded its fees for the defense of Plaintiffs' claims in the amount of \$237.954.50. The Plaintiffs, Carlos A. Huerta and The Alexander Christopher Trust are liable jointly and severally to The Rogich Family Irrevocable Trust for said award.

 Id. at 230.

ARGUMENT

APPELLANTS' ARGUMENT THAT THE CONTRACTUAL PROVISION
FOR AWARDING PREVAILING PARTY FEES DOES NOT APPLY
UNLESS THE COURT HAS INTERPRETED OR ENFORCED THE
AGREEMENT IS MERITLESS

Paragraph 7(d) of the Purchase Agreement provides that "In the event that any action or proceeding is instituted to interpret or enforce the terms and provisions of this Agreement, however, the prevailing party shall be entitled to its costs and attorneys' fees, in addition to any other relief it may obtain or to which it may be entitled."

"Parties are free to provide for attorney fees by express contractual

1	provisions." Davis v. Beling, 128 Nev. Adv. Op. 28, 278 P. 3d 501, 515
2	(2012) citing Musso v. Binick, 104 Nev. 613, 614, 764 P.2d 477, 477 (1988).
3	"The objective in interpreting an attorney fees provision, as with all
5	contracts, 'is to discern the intent of the contracting parties.'" <i>Id. quoting</i>
6	
7	Cline v. Rocky Mountain, Inc., 998 P.2d 946, 949 (Wyo. 2000). "Traditional
8	rules of contract interpretation are employed to accomplish that result." <i>Id.</i>
9	"Therefore, the initial focus is on whether the language of the contract is
10 11	clear and unambiguous; if it is, the contract will be enforced as written." Id.
12	citing Ellison v. California State Auto Ass'n, 106 Nev. 601, 603, 797 P.2d
13	975, 977 (1990).
14	The language in 7(d) is clear and unambiguous. Notwithstanding,
15	
16	Appellants state "The fee shifting provision provides that fees may be
17	awarded if the contract is interpreted or enforced." Op. Br.at 13:20-21, fn 3.

Except that Appellants quote 7(d) immediately following the above

²Equally egregious is Appellants' attempt in footnote 2 to show that the summary judgment was without prejudice stating that. "NRCP 41(a)(2) states that a dismissal, unless otherwise designated is without prejudice." NRCP 41(a) applies to a dismissal at plaintiff's instance. NCRP 41(2)(b) applies to a dismissal order following defendant's motion and such order, is with prejudice unless otherwise specified, and is an adjudication upon the merits. Five Star Capital Corporation v. Ruby, 124 Nev. 1048,1058, 194 P. 3d 709,

715 (2008). Furthermore, the Final Judgment expressly provides the dismissal is with prejudice. App. at 236:11

That interpretation of paragraph 7(d) is indefensible².

footnote, they do not in their entire 26 page brief mention that the fee shifting paragraph applies if the action is <u>instituted</u> to interpret or enforce agreement terms and not litigation with respect to interpretation or enforcement.

Clearly, the intention of the Purchase Agreement parties was that if an action was instituted with respect to interpretation or enforcement, the party who won the case would be entitled to prevailing party attorney's fees. The Rogich Trust was the clear winner and entitled to its attorney fees.

The action was instituted by Huerta and the AC Trust to interpret or enforce the Purchase Agreement. Their first cause of action was for breach of express contract by Rogich not paying \$2,747,729.50 to them. *Id.* at 25:12-26:4. Their breach claim was based on Rogich's transfer of Rogich's Eldorado interest to Teld, LLC. Even though the Purchase Agreement did not preclude such transfer, Appellants were seeking an interpretation that such transfer was a breach of the Purchase Agreement. Thus, Appellants sought both an interpretation and enforcement of the Purchase Agreement.

Although the Purchase Agreement required only the institution of an action for enforcement or interpretation, the summary judgment awarded was in fact based on litigation of the significant issue of whether the conduct of Huerta and Go Global, in not disclosing their alleged claim against Rogich to

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

the creditors in their bankruptcy, barred enforcement of their claim. The court ruled that their conduct did bar their enforcement claim and that "this is a case that's very ripe for judicial estoppel and under the applicable case law the motion [for summary judgment] is granted. App. at 133:23-25.

Appellants argue Rogich was not the prevailing party because the Summary Judgment was based on judicial estoppel and "not for a significant reason arising under the contract nor did Defendant obtain a money judgment." Op. Br. at 20:21-24. Appellants ignore that paragraph 7(d) requires institution of an action for enforcement or interpretation. Huerta instituted this action for Purchase Agreement enforcement which the Court denied. Rogich obtained a favorable adjudication upon the merits. See footnote 2.

Accordingly, Rogich was the prevailing party and entitled to attorney fees.

<u>II.</u>

APPELLANTS MISCELLANEOUS OTHER ARGUMENTS ARE IRRELEVANT AND IN ANY EVENT PRECLUDED BY NRCP 61

Appellants argue that because Judge Allf in her oral ruling from the bench stated that "the fee award would go against all the plaintiffs, whose

names appeared in the case caption, was improper. Op. Br. at 14:2-21, 22:23-23:7. That harmless error (NRCP 61) was duly corrected in the Order Granting Motion for Award of Attorneys' Fees and in the Final Judgment. APP at 229, 236 where fees were awarded against Huerta and the AC Trust only.

Appellants argue that Rogich claimed that Go Global remained liable for attorneys' fees because its obligations under the Purchase Agreement continued after its Assignment to the AC Trust. Op. Br. at 23:8-24:67. While such claim was made below, the short answer is that no fees were awarded against Go Global and it is not a party to this appeal.

Appellants argue that Rogich t has failed to show justification for the Rogich Trust's reverse alter ego claim which was made below. Appellants neglect to tell the court the claim below was only made with respect to Go Global. App. at 148:18-22.

III.

APPELLANTS HAVE NOT CHALLENGED FEES AWARDED

Exhibit "A" to Rogich's Motion for Award of Attorneys' Fees contains 17 pages setting forth descriptions of services rendered to Rogich, dates of the services, times spent and the changes for such services. App. at

151-173. Appellants do not challenge any aspect of such showing.

Exhibit 1 to the Motion is the Declaration of Samuel S. Lionel which states that fees charged in Exhibit "A" of \$237,954.50 "represent charges actually and necessarily rendered to the Rogich Trust in connection with defense of the Huerta claims." *Id.* at 154. That Declaration is not challenged nor are any findings of Judge Allf, set forth in the facts herein, disputed by Appellants.

IV.

THE DECISIONS CITED BY THE APPELLANTS DO NOT HELP THEM

Appellants cite numerous decisions, none of which impact the correctness of the award of prevailing party attorney fees to Rogich.

Comments with respect to their non applicability of some of those cases are as follows:

Valley Elec. Ass 'n v. Overfield 121 Nev. 7, 10, 106 P. 3d 1198, 1200 (2005). Op. Br. at 16:19-17:2. The money judgment requirement under NRS 18.010 has no applicability here.

Glenbrook Homeowners Ass'n v. Glenbrook Co....Nev. 98, 909, 922, 901. P. 2d 132, 41 (1985). Op. Br. at 17:2-7. Huerta did no prevail on any issue. Only Rogich prevailed.

1	Eberle v. The State of Nevada Upon the Relation of the Neil J.
2	Redfield Trust, 108 Nev. 587, 590-591, 836 P.2d 67, 69-70 (1991). Op. Br.
4	at 17:9-18:2. Rogich did prevail on an issue raised in the complaint. The
5	Court denied enforcement of Appellants' \$2,747,729.50 claim and the case
6 7	proceeded to judgment.
8	LVMPD v. Blackjack Bonding, 131 Nev. Adv. Op. 10, 343 P. 3d 608,
9	615, 2015. Op. Br. at 18:4-21. Rogich did prevail on the significant issue of
10	whether Appellants were entitled to the enforcement of their claim.
1112	Foley v. Kennedy, 110 Nev. 1295, 1304, 885 P. 2d 583, 588 (1994).
13	Op. Br. at 18:21-26. The award of costs under NRS 18.010 has no
1415	applicability here.
16	BP. Am. Prod. Co. v. Chesapeake Exploration LLC., 747 F. 3d 1253,
17	1262 (10 th Cir. 2014). Op. Br. at 20:7-10. Paragraph 7(d) does not require a
18 19	prevailing privity to have an affirmative judgment in its favor.
20	//
21	//
22	
23	
24	
25	

1	CONCLUSION
2	The Order Granting Motion for Award of Attorneys' Fees should be
3	The Order Granting Wotton for Award of Attorneys Tees should be
4	affirmed.
5	FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.
6	By Him
7	Samuel S. Lionel, Esq.
8	Nevada State Bar No. 1766
9	300 S. Fourth Street, #1400 Las Vegas, NV 89101
10	
11	Attorneys for Respondent Sig Rogich aka Sigmund Rogich as
12	Trustee of the Rogich Family
13	Irrevocable Trust
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25